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Endorsement and Statement by the Board
of Directors and the CEO

Operations in the year 2007
The financial statements comprise the consolidated financial statements of FL GROUP hf. ("the Company") and its
subsidiaries together referred to as the "Group".

FL GROUP hf. is an international investment company with core investments in financials and insurance along with
private equity investments with special focus on property companies as well as proprietary trading. The Company
operates offices in Reykjavik and London.

In January 2007 the Company sold all its shares in the fully owned subsidiary Kynnisferdir hf. The Company
generated profit before taxes of ISK 486 million on this transaction in the first quarter.

During the year FL GROUP hf. acquired the majority of the shares in Tryggingamidst6din hf. (TM hf.) and at year-
end it owned 99.9% of outstanding shares in the Company. TM hf. became a part of the consolidated financial
statements in the beginning of October 2007. In relation to the acquisition of TM hf. the share capital was increased
in September and October 2007 by ISK 1,300 million at the price of ISK 24.3 per share.

The share capital was further increased in two stages in December 2007. First by ISK 680 million which was sold for
ISK 10,000 million in a share offering and then by ISK 3,659 million sold for ISK 53,791 million in relation to the
investment in Landic Properties hf. and other real-estate companies and funds.

According to the consolidated income statement, loss for the year amounted to ISK 67,238 million. According to the
consolidated balance sheet, equity at the end of the year amounted to ISK 155,844 million, including share capital in
the amount of ISK 13,494 million. Reference is made to the notes to the consolidated financial statements regarding
information on changes in equity.

The Board of Directors proposes that no dividends will be paid to shareholders in 2008.

Share capital and Articles of Association

The share capital amounted to ISK 13,584 million at the end of the year, from which the Company held own shares in
the amount of ISK 90 million. The share capital is divided into shares of ISK 1, each with equal rights within a
single class of shares listed on the Icelandic Stock Exchange (OMX Iceland). The Board of Directors has the right to
increase the share capital until 25 September 2012 by up to ISK 1,320 million with sale of new shares. Thereof are
up to ISK 500 million subject to the pre-emptive purchase provisions of the Articles of Association. The Board of
Directors decides the rules of sale each time, i.e. price, payments, subscription period etc. Additionally the Board of
Directors can increase the share capital up to ISK 17 million for the purpose of financing the purchase of TM hf. The
Board of Directors has the right to purchase up to 10% of the nominal value of the shares of the Company until 22
August 2008. The shares' purchase price may be up to 20% above the average sales price of shares on the Icelandic
Stock Exchange.

Share-option agreements have been made with employees of the Group, which enables them to purchase shares in the
Company at the average exercise price of ISK 14.7 per share after a vesting period of 12 to 36 months. Further
information on the share option agreements is disclosed in note 39.
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Endorsement and statement by the Board of Directors and the CEO, contd.:

The Company's Board of Directors comprises seven members and two reserve members elected on the annual
general meeting for a term of one year. Those persons willing to stand for election must give formal notice thereof to
the Board of Directors at least five days before the annual general meeting. The Company's Articles of Association
may only be amended at a legitimate shareholders' meeting, provided that amendments and their main aspects are
clearly stated in the invitation to the meeting. A resolution will only be valid if it is approved by at least 2/3 of votes
cast and is approved by shareholders controlling at least 2/3 of the share capital represented at the shareholders'
meeting.

Shareholders at the end of the year 2007 were 4,319, but were 4,622 at the beginning of the year, a decrease of 303
during the year. When forward agreements are taken into account, two shareholders held more than 10% of
outstanding shares each at year end 2007. They are Baugur Group hf. and related Companies with 36.2% share,
Oddaflug B.V. with 10.9% share and Gnupur fjarfestingafélag hf. with 10.9% share.

Further information on matters related to share capital is disclosed in note 30.

Statement by the Board of Directors and the CEO

The annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and additional Icelandic
disclosure requirements for consolidated financial statements of listed companies.

According to our best knowledge it is our opinion that the annual consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial performance of the Company for the financial year 2007, its assets, liabilities
and consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2007 and its consolidated cash flows for the financial year
2007.

Further, in our opinion the consolidated financial statements and the endorsement of the Board of Directors and the
CEO give a fair view of the development and performance of the Group's operations and its position and describes
the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group.

The Board of Directors and the CEO have today discussed the annual consolidated financial statements of FL
GROUP hf. for the year 2007 and confirm them by means of their signatures. The Board of Directors and the CEO
recommend that the consolidated financial statements will be approved at the annual general meeting of FL GROUP

hf.

R@iﬁebm@ry 2008.
The Board of Directors:

—

CEO:
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Independent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of FLL GROUP hf.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of FL. GROUP hf. and its subsidiaries, (the
"Group"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2007, and the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting principles used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of

FL GROUP hf. as at 31 December 2007, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted the EU.

Reykjavik, 13 February 2008.

KPMG hf.
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Consolidated Income Statement for the year 2007

Notes 2007 2006
Net investment (expense) income:
Net (expense) income from investment securities and derivatives ......... 8 ( 63,682) 23,956
INLEIESt INCOME ...ttt et ere e eeaeeeenes 9 4,982 854
INEEIESt EXPEIISE ...envieniiiiiiiieiieitet ettt 9 ( 17,566) ( 4,948)
Net foreign exchange gain (10SS) .....cceveeeerieriiinieieieneecseeeeeene 2,476 ( 2,371)
( 73,790) 17,491
Net insurance income:
INSUTANCE PrEMIUIM . .couvitiiiriieiieierieeiceie ettt 10 2,769 0
2,769 0
Operating expenses:
INSUTANCE CIAIMS ..vovviiieiieiieieie et 11 ( 2,598) 0
Other Operating EXPENSES ........eevevereerierreerieeeeesiessesseeseeeessessesseeseessenes 12 ( 6,153) ( 2,771)
( 8,751) ( 2,771)
(Loss) profit before income tax ................ccocovevirieieienene e, ( 79,772) 14,720
TNCOME tAX .ottt ettt seene s e nes 15,16 12,534 2,631
(Loss) profit from continuing operations ..............cc..cocevvinieniineneene. ( 67,238) 17,351
Profit from discontinued operations, net of income tax ........c..cccceceerernennenn, 0 27,208
(Loss) profit for the year ..., ( 67,238) 44,559
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company .........cc.cccceveririeiienenieneneeee e ( 67,247) 44,560
MINOTILY INEEIEST ...eveiiieiieiiiciieiceieie et 9 ( 1)
(Loss) profit for the year ... ( 67,238) 44,559
(Loss) earnings per share:
Basic (loss) earnings per share (ISK) ......ccccoovireriiiiincniininicncienes 18 ( 8.18) 6.65
Diluted (loss) earnings per share (ISK) .......cccocoveirineninenenneneeee. 18 ( 7.96) 6.60

The notes on pages 11 to 51 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2007

Notes 2007 2006

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .........c..ceceeciirienininieieiee e 20 21,125 47,022
Unpaid share capital ...........cccooeriiiiiiniininc e 7,500 0
EQUILY INVESTMENTS .....eviivieiieiiiieiieiieieteete ettt etete st esaesaesbeeaeesaessesesseeseens 21 218,998 181,037
Bonds and debt iNVESTMENLS ..........c.ccveieieiieneniicieieieie e 22 16,021 124
DIETIVALIVES ...vivievienieiieieeeieteiesteeee et etete st e sseeaeeseebessesseeseeseessensessesseeseassensenes 24 6,604 4,309
RESIICLEA CASN ..ottt 25 53,060 9,572
Assets classified as held for sale ..........ccooooeeviieiiiiiciiccieceee e, 0 904
Loans and receivables, including insurance receivables ............cccoceeeererenens 26,27 42,348 19,478
REINSUIANCE @SSELS ..veeivvviiieeiiieieeeeieeeeteeeeeeeeeeteeeeate e et e eeae e e saeeeeaaeeeaeessaseesraeeens 32 13,937 0
I DS < 6 (T ¥ bz 1T AR 35 8,623 0
OPETALING ASSELS ...vevieueenietieteetientete e eteeeeetente st st eseetessesseeseeneesenseeseeneensenes 28 2,167 425
TNEANZIDIC @SSCLS ..vvevviviivieiieieieet et eeet ettt ettt et eieesb e s e sbeeteeseesaesesesaeas 29 31,937 0
Total assets 422,320 262,871

Equity:
Share CAPILAl ....c.eeeiiieeieieiee ettt ne s 30 13,494 7,763
SNATE PIEMIUM ....ecuieiiiieii ettt ettt et sseeeeeneenes 160,965 70,530
(011115 W (11 4= RO 1,626 948
(Accumulated deficit) retained €arnings ...........ccoceeerererieiienenieneneenenenenne ( 20,559) 63,425
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 155,526 142,666
MINOTIY INEETESE ...vvevveureiesiietieeeeieteete et etete e steeseeseessessesteeseeseessensessesseeneeneas 318 10
Total equity 155,844 142,676

Liabilities:

DETIVALIVES ...vviiveieiiie ettt ete et eree e et e et e s ete e e eaaesenaeeeenaeeanreean 24 13,488 7,021
SNOTE POSTLIONS ..ttt ettt sttt ee e eae e 3,350 0
Trade and other payables ..........ccceoereririeieee e 31 14,469 5,908
Liabilities classified as held for sale ...........cceevieviieiienieiicececeereei s 0 634
INSUrance HAbILItIES .....c.eeeeveiieeieeeree ettt ettt 32 29,626 0
BOITOWIINES ...ttt ettt sttt sttt sbe s eaeen 34,35 204,979 104,955
Income tax LabIlity .....ccccevveriiririiieieier e 36 564 1,677
Total liabilities 266,476 120,195
Total equity and liabilities 422,320 262,871

The notes on pages 11 to 51 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year 2007

Notes 2007 2006
Cash flows from operating activities:
(L0sS) Profit fOr the YEaT .......ccevuieiieieieieee et ( 67238) 44,559
Adjustments for:
DIEPIECIALION ..ttt ettt ettt se e st e e e 113 23
Other OPErating ILEIMNS .......cevervirieetieieieriesteeeettete et e e seesbe et eneeneeseeseeeneas 21,355 784
Discontinued OPETatioNsS ............eceerueruiruirieiienienteeeeteie e seesieeneeee e seeseeeneeneenes 0 1,982
Working capital (to) from operations (  45770) 47,348
Net change in operating assets and 1iabilities .........c.cccevereriecineneininccncneienens ( 12,067) ( 1,099)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities ( 57,837) 46,249
Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment SECUrities, CHANGZE .........ceeverviriieiieieieieee ettt 48,083  ( 92,518)
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired .........c..ccoocevievieiienineiieienen. ( 36,510) ( 9,399)
Disposals of subsidiaries, net of cash sold .........cccceviviiieieciiniciccee e 544 29,304
Derivatives, ChANZE ......ccecvieieieieriese ettt ettt sa e saeeseeneeneens 4,143 8,776
Restricted cash, change ... ( 37,514) ( 9,572)
Trade receivables and Donds ...........cc.ocovvviieiieiiiiieie e ( 1,839) 8,274
Acquisition of OPErating ASSELS .........ccevieierieririeetieieieseee et aens ( 706) ( 448 )
Proceeds from the sale of operating assets ..........ccceeveeveerenereeieeiieneneneeeene 555 0
Acquisition of INtangible aSSELs .........ccecereeieriireririeieee e ( 123) 0
Discontinued OPErations ...........ccccveiruirieirienieinenieieeseeee e 0 2,822
Net cash used in investing activities ( 23367) ( 62,761)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from the issue of share capital ..........c.cccoveeieriireninineee e 2,500 0
OWN Shares, ChANZE .......ccueviiirieieeceeee e 1,902 ( 3,119)
Dividend Paid ......co.eeieiiriiiieeeee e ( 15745) ( 6,341)
Proceeds from DOITOWINGS ......cooveriiriiiiiiiiiieeiieeee e 92,666 133,271
Repayment of BOITOWINEGS .......ccooviiieiiiiieiiineieineee et ( 25905) ( 72,566)
DiscoNtinUed OPETAtIONS ........ceveverieriierierieiesiesteeeeeeeiessesseeseessesessesseesseseensenns 0 ( 584)
Net cash provided by financing activities 55,418 50,661
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents .................... ( 25,786) 34,149
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January ..., 47,022 10,350
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held ................ ( 111) 2,523
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December ....................c.cc.cooennne, 21,125 47,022

The notes on pages 11 to 51 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year 2007, contd.:

Notes 2007 2006

Investing and financing transactions without cash flow effect:

Acquisition of INVEStMENt SECUTTHIES ...c..evveereeierieriiniiriieienierienie et ( 53,791) ( 28322)

Acquisition of SUDSIAIATY .....cc.eoeriiiiiriiniiieieeeeee e ( 31,584) ( 4,022)

Unpaid share capital ..........cooeoeririeiiineeeeeeee e ( 7,500 ) 0

Issued share capital ..........cccccueeiiiiiiiieiieee e 92,875 32,344
Other information:

Interest INCOME TECEIVEA .....ocvvviiviiiieiiiciie et 2,439 818

Interest €XpPenSe PAIA .......cecveveeriereieieieiere ettt ne 11,552 2,663

INCOME taXES PAIA ..eveeeieiiiiciieiieieee ettt 782 0

Dividends TECEIVEM .....uviieviiereieciie ettt et eneees 4,297 806

The notes on pages 11 to 51 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes

1.  Reporting Entity

FL GROUP hf's registered office is at Sidumuli 24 in Reykjavik, Iceland. The consolidated financial
statements of FL. GROUP hf. ("the Company") as at and for the year ended 31 December 2007 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries, together referred to as the “Group” and individually as "Group entities".

FL GROUP hf. is an international investment company with core investments in financials and insurance along
with private equity investments with special focus on property companies as well as proprietary trading. The
company operates offices in Reykjavik and London.

2. Basis of preparation

a. Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of FL GROUP hf. on 13 February 2008.

b.  Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following:
* financial assets and liabilities held for trading are measured at fair value;

* financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, including
investments in associates.

c.  Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in Icelandic Krona (ISK), which is the Company's functional
currency. All financial information has been rounded to the nearest million, unless otherwise stated.

d.  Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [FRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is
described in note 4m.

FL GROUP hf.
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Notes, contd.:

3. Accounting policies related to financial instruments

a.  Financial assets and liabilities
(i)  Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities

Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities in the Group’s balance sheet comprise equity and debt
investments, loans and receivables, cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, short positions, trade and other
payables and borrowings.

Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, for assets and liabilities
not at fair value through profit or loss, any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition non-derivative financial assets and liabilities are measured as described below.

A financial instrument is recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are derecognised if the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial assets expire or if the Group transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control or
substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
accounted for at trade date, i.e. the date that the Group commits itself to purchase or sell the asset. Loans and
receivables are recognised on the date that they are originated. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the
Group’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss if the Group manages such investments with a
view to profiting from their total return in the form of fair value changes, interest and dividend and makes
purchase and sale decisions based on their fair value. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognised in profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

Financial assets and liabilities held for trading

Financial assets and liabilities are classified as held for trading if acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the short term and if they are part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of short-term profit-taking. Non-
derivative financial liabilities held for trading consist of short positions in equity instruments. Financial assets
and liabilities classified as held for trading are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognised in
profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss when
incurred.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Loans and recievables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. A provision for impairment of loans and
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to their original terms. Receivables arising from insurance contracts are also classified in this
category and are reviewed for impairment as part of the impairment review of loans and receivables.

FL GROUP hf.

Consolidated Financial Statements 2007 Amounts are in ISK million

12




Notes, contd.:

3. contd.:

Held to maturity investments

If the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold debt securities to maturity, then they are classified as held:
to-maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Other non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(i) Derivative financial assets and liabilities

The Group holds derivative financial instruments for investment purposes but also to hedge its interest rate and
currency risk. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the
economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and the embedded derivative are not closely related, a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative,
and the combined instrument is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value; attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss
when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are
accounted for through profit or loss. Derivatives with positive fair value at the reporting date are recognised as
assets in the balance sheet while derivatives with negative fair value are recognised as liabilities. Because the
Group does not apply hedge accounting, all derivative assets and liabilities are classified as held for trading.

b.  Investment income
(i)  Net (expense) income from investment securities and derivatives

Net (expense) income from investments in securities and derivatives comprise gain on the sale of shares,
changes in the fair value of the investments and derivatives, other than foreign exchange hedges, and dividend
income. Dividend income is recognised in the income statement on the date the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

(i) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense is recognised in the income statement using the effective interest method.

(iii) Net foreign exchange gain (loss)
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) comprises foreign exchange changes arising from assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies, other then equity derivatives, and gains and losses arising from derivatives
hedging the foreign currency risk.

FL GROUP hf.
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Notes, contd.:

3. contd.:

c. Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is
impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events
have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis.
The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss.

d.  Fair value measurement principles for financial instruments
(i) Investment securities

The fair value of investment securities is based on their quoted market bid prices at the reporting date without
any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

If a quoted market price is not available on a stock exchange or from a broker / dealer for non-exchange-traded
financial instruments, the fair value of the investment is estimated using valuation techniques, including use of
recent arm’s length market transactions, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is
substantially the same, discounted cash flow techniques, option pricing models or any other valuation technique
that provides a reliable estimate of prices obtained in actual market transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on management’s best
estimates and the discount rate used is a market rate at the reporting date applicable for an instrument with
similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are based on market data at the
reporting date. Fair values for unquoted equity investments are estimated, if possible, using applicable price /
earnings ratios for similar listed companies adjusted to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer.

(i) Derivatives
The fair value of forward exchange contracts and equity derivatives are based on their listed market price, if
available. If a listed market price is not available, then fair value is estimated by discounting the difference
between the contractual forward price and the current forward price for the residual maturity of the contract
using a risk-free interest rate based on government bonds.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is based on broker quotes. Those quotes are tested for reasonableness by
discounting estimated future cash flows based on the terms and maturity of each contract and using market
interest rates for a similar instrument at the measurement date.
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(iii) Loans and receivables including insurance receivables

The fair value of loans and receivables, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is estimated as the present
value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

(iv) Non-derivative financial liabilities
The fair value of non-derivative financial liabilities, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is based on

the present value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the
reporting date.

c. Insurance contracts

As part of its insurance operations the Group’s entities issue contracts that transfer both financial and insurance
risk from the customers to the Group.

(1) Insurance contracts - definition

Insurance contracts are contracts under which the insurer accepts significant insurance risk from policyholders
by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event would occur.

Insurance risk is all risk, other than financial risk, that is transferred from the policyholder to the insurer such as
accident, death or damage.

(i) Insurance contracts - classification

The Group's insurance contracts are categorized in two groups according to how long the insurance risk lasts
and whether the contract are fixed or changeable.

Property and casualty insurance:
Insurance contracts that are categorized as in this section are liability insurance, casualty insurance and property
insurance.

Liability and casualty insurance contracts protect the customers against the risk of causing harm to third parties
as a result of their legitimate activities and compensates the policyholders own damage in accordance with the
terms of the insurance contracts.

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the customers for damage suffered to their properties or for the
value of property lost. Customers in business could also receive compensation for the loss of earnings caused
by the inability to use the insured properties in their business.

Life insurance:

These contracts insure events associated with human life, for example death or survival over a long duration.
Premiums are entered as income in the period they are issued and claims paid are entered as expense in the
period that the insured event incurres.
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(iii) [Investments with investments risk of the life assurance policyholders

Investments with the investment risk of life assurance policyholders are financial assets owned by the Group
that the policyholders have selected and carry the investment risk in accordance with the life assurance policy.
Technical provision for life assurance policies where the investment risk is borne by the policyholders is the
Group's liability towards these policyholders in the same amount.

(iv) Technical provisions

The Group assesses, at the end of the fiscal year, whether the recorded insurance liability can carry out the
Group's estimated obligations by assessing future cash flows of the insurance liability. All changes in the
insurance liability are recognized in the income statement. In performing these tests, current best estimates of
future contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as investment income
from the assets backing such liabilities, are used.

(V)  Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contracts are made in order to reduce the Group's risks. Reinsurance contracts can be either
proportional or carry the entire risk in the case of a damage exceeding a fixed damage cost.

Claims on reinsurers due to premiums and claims are recognized as reinsurance assets. The claims concern the
reinsurers share in damages according to reinsured insurance contracts and share in premium liability.
Obligations due to reinsurance are the reinsurers share in premiums for reinsurance contracts which are
recognized in the income statement at the time of the renewal of the reinsurance contracts.

(vi) Insurance operations

Premiums recognised as income comprise the premiums contracted during the period including premiums
transferred from last years but excluding next periods premiums, which are recognised as premium reserve.
Premium reserve in the balance sheet forms the part of premiums due to insurance risk during the period which
belongs to the next fiscal year.

Claims recognised in the income statements are the period's claims including increases due to claims of
previous fiscal year. Claims reserved in the balance sheet are the total amount of reported but unpaid claims as
well as actuarial provision for claims occurred but unreported.

f.  Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of shares and share
options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Repurchase of share capital

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, including directly
attributable costs net of tax, is recognised as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as
treasury shares and are presented as a deduction from total equity. When treasury shares are sold or reissued
subsequently, the amount received is recognised as an increase in equity, and the resulting surplus of deficit on
the transaction is transferred to/from share premium/retained earnings.
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Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a decrease in equity in the period in which they are declared.

4. QOther accounting policies

a.  Basis of consolidation
(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power, directly or
indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable or convertible are taken into account.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Group.

When an acquisition is completed by a series of successive transactions, each significant transaction is
considered individually for the purpose of the determination of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired and hence for the goodwill associated with the acquisition.

(i) Minority interests

Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not owned, directly or indirectly, by the
Group and are presented separately in the income statement and within equity in the consolidated balance sheet,
separately from the equity attributable to equity holders of the Company. The Group accounts for transactions
with minority interests as transactions with parties external to the Group. Disposals to minority interests result
in gains and losses for the Company that is recorded in the income statement. Purchases from minority interests
result in goodwill, being the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is recognised immediately as income in the income statement.

(iii) Associates
Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds between 20 and 50 percent
of the voting power of another entity. Investments in associates are designated at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition and are included within equity investments in the balance sheet. The Group defines
its operations partly as venture capital organisation and that part of the business is clearly and objectively
distinct from other operations.

(iv) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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(v) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business that represents a separate major line of
business that has been disposed of or is classified held for sale. Subsidiaries acquired exclusively with a view
to resale are also defined as discontinued operations. Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. When an operation
is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative income statement is restated as if the operation had
been discontinued from the start of the comparative period.

b.  Foreign currency
(i)  Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currency of Group entities at
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the income statement. Acquisition of
operating assets in foreign currencies is translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction. Operating expenses and sales in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling
at the date of the transaction.

(i) Foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on

acquisition, are translated to the functional currency at exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and
expenses of foreign operations are translated to the functional currency at the average exchange rate.

Foreign currency translation differences are recognised directly in equity in the translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is disposed of, in part or in full, the relevant amount in the translation reserve is transferred to
profit or loss.

c.  Operating assets
(i) Measurement

Operating assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

(i) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of operating asset is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other costs are
recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation
Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
item of operating assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

BUILAINES .ottt et et e b e bbbt e et s bt e bt eat et et b e b et neen 33 years
Other operating assets .. 3-10 years
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The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reassesed at the reporting date.

d. Intangible assets
(1)  Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method. Goodwill represents amounts
arising on acquisition of subsidiaries. In respect of business acquisitions goodwill represents the difference
between the cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired.

Goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

(i) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the relevant asset. The
estimated useful lives are specified as follows:

SOTEWATE ...t ettt 3 years
CUSTOMET TELATIONS ......euveutetitiietieteteitet ettt ettt et et b e st b et e e bt e b e bt et et e bt sb et e st ebete st esenbeneeneenen 6 years
Other INtANGIDIE ASSELS ....c.eeverviieririiieiiiteiei ettt ettt b e bbbt et be st e be e 6-10 years

(iii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as
incurred.

e. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that are not yet available for use,
the recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”). The goodwill acquired in a business combination,
for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata
basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses
recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

f.  Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of options granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense, with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the
options. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest.

The fair value of employee stock options is measured using a Black-Scholes model. Measurement inputs
include share price on measurement date, exercise price of the instrument, expected volatility based on
weighted average historic volatility adjusted for changes expected due to publicly available information,
weighted average expected life of the instruments based on historical experience and general option holder
behaviour, expected dividends, and the risk-free interest rate based on government bonds. Service and non-
market performance conditions attached to the transactions are not taken into account in determining fair value.

g. Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term
of the lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent lease
payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the lease when
the lease adjustment is confirmed.

h. Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

FL GROUP hf.

Consolidated Financial Statements 2007 Amounts are in ISK million

20




Notes, contd.:

4. contd.:

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. In addition, deferred tax
is not recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets,
and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax
entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities
will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

i.  Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprises share options granted to employees.

j.  Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing products or services and
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments. The Group’s primary
format for segment reporting at year-end is based on one hand on the investment activities and the other hand
the insurance activities that consist of TM hf. and its subsidiaries acquired during the year.

k.  New standards and interpretations effective in 2007

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and the Amendment to IAS [ Presentation of Financial
Statements: Capital Disclosures became mandatory for the Group’s 2007 financial statements. The adoption of
IFRS 7 and the amendment to IAS 1 impacted the type and amount of disclosures made in these financial
statements, but had no impact on the reported profits or financial position of the Group. In accordance with the
transitional requirements of the standards, the Group has provided full comparative information.

IFRIC 7 — 10 became mandatory for the Group’s 2007 financial statements but their adoption had no impact on
the Group’s 2007 financial statements.
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1. New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2007, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements:

IFRS 8 Operating Segments introduces the “management approach” to segment reporting. IFRS 8, which
becomes mandatory for the Group’s 2009 financial statements, will require the disclosure of segment
information based on the internal reports. The Group has not yet determined the potential effect of IFRS 8 on
the consolidated financial statements.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (revised in 2007) replaces IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements (revised in 2003) as amended in 2005. TAS 1 (Revised 2007) sets the overall requirements for the
presentation of financial statements, guidelines for their structure and minimum requirements for their content.
The main change in revised IAS 1 is a requirement to present all non-owner changes in equity (changes in
equity not resulting from transactions with owners in their capacity as owners) in one or two statements: either
in a single statement of comprehensive income, or in an income statement plus in a statement of comprehensive
income. Unlike under current IAS 1, it is not permitted to present components of comprehensive income in the
statement of changes in equity. IAS 1 (revised in 2007), which becomes mandatory for the Group’s 2009
financial statements if endorsed by the EU, is expected to impact the presentation of the Group’s income
statement and statement of changes in equity.

Revised I4S 23 Borrowing Costs removes the option to expense borrowing costs and requires that an entity
capitalise borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset as part of the cost of that asset. If endorsed by the EU, the revised IAS 23 will become mandatory for the
Group’s 2009 financial statements and will have no effect on the Group’s accounting policies.

The amendments to IFRS 2 Share Based Payment — Vesting Conditions and Cancellations (January 2008)
clarify the definition of vesting conditions and the accounting treatment of cancellations. If endorsed by the EU,
the amendments become mandatory for the Group’s 2009 financial statements, with retrospective application
required. The amendments are not expected to have any effect on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations (revised in 2008) and amended I4S 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements introduce changes to the accounting for business combinations and for non-controlling (minority)
interest. The most significant changes from IFRS 3 (2004) and IAS 27 (2003) are the following:

- IFRS 3 (2008) applies also to business combinations involving only mutual entities and to business
combinations achieved by contract alone;

- The definition of a business combination has been revised to focus on control;

- The definition of a business has been amended,

- Transaction costs incurred by the acquirer in connection with the business combination do not form part of the
business combination transaction;

- Acquisitions of additional non-controlling equity interests after the business combination are accounted for as
equity transactions;

- Disposals of equity interests while retaining control are accounted for as equity transactions;

- New disclosures are required.
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IFRS 3 (revised in 2008) and amended IAS 27 will become mandatory for the Group’s 2010 Financial
Statements, if endorsed by the EU. The carrying amounts of any assets and liabilities that arose under business
combinations prior to the application of IFRS 3 (revised in 2008) are not adjusted while most of the
amendments to IAS 27 must be applied retrospectively. The Group has not yet determined the potential effect
of IFRS 3 (revised in 2008) and amended IAS 27 on the consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions requires a share-based payment arrangement in
which an entity receives goods or services as consideration for its own equity instruments to be accounted for as
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction, regardless of how the equity instruments are obtained. IFRIC
11 will become mandatory for the Group’s 2008 financial statements, with retrospective application required.
IFRIC 11 is not expected to have any impact on the consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements provides guidance on certain recognition and measurement issues
that arise in accounting for publicto-private service concession arrangements. IFRIC 12, which becomes
mandatory for the Group’s 2008 financial statements if endorsed by the EU, will have no effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

FRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes addresses the accounting by entities that operate, or otherwise
participate in, customer loyalty programmes for their customers. It relates to customer loyalty programmes
under which the customer can redeem credits for awards such as free or discounted goods or services. [FRIC
13, which becomes mandatory for the Group’s 2009 financial statements if endorsed by the EU, is not expected
to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 14 IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction clarifies when refunds or reductions in future contributions in relation to defined benefit assets
should be regarded as available and provides guidance on the impact of minimum funding requirements (MFR)
on such assets. It also addresses when a MFR might give rise to a liability. IFRIC 14 will become mandatory for
the Group’s 2008 financial statements if endorsed by the EU, with retrospective application required. The
Group has not yet determined the potential effect of the interpretation on the consolidated financial statements.

m. Accounting estimates and judgements

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Determination of fair values of financial instruments

As indicated in note 3a the Group’s securities, derivatives and investments in associates are measured at fair
value. For the majority of these financial instruments, quoted market prices are readily available. However,
certain financial instruments, for example, over-the-counter derivatives or unquoted securities are fair valued
using valuation techniques, including reference to the current fair values of other instruments that are
substantially the same, subject to the appropriate adjustments.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on market conditions and information about the
financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of
significant judgement (e.g. interest rates, volatility, estimated cash flows etc.) and therefore, cannot be
determined with precision.
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Determination of impairment of financial assets

Financial assets accounted for at amortised cost are evaluated for impairment on the basis described in
accounting policy 3c. The assessment for impairment is based upon management’s best estimate of the present
value of the cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows, management makes
judgements about a counterparty’s financial situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral.

Determination of impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets, such as goodwill and intangible assets, are reviewed at each reporting date for impairment.
The assessment for impairment is based upon management’s estimates of future cash flows and discount rates.

Determination of fair value of share-based payment transactions

The fair value of options at grant date is determined as disclosed in accounting policy 4f. For share options
granted to employees, in many cases market prices are not available, because the options granted are subject to
terms and conditions that do not apply to traded options. If traded options with similar terms and conditions do
not exist, the fair value of the options granted are estimated by applying an option pricing model. In estimating
the fair value of options at grant date, the management considers factors that knowledgeable, willing market
participants would consider in selecting the option pricing model to be used for this purpose.

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

Critical accounting judgements made in applying the Group’s accounting policies include:

Finacial assets and liability classification

The Group’s accounting policies provide scope for assets and liabilities to be designated on inception into
different accounting categories in certain circumstances:

In classifying financial assets or liabilities as “trading”, the Group has determined that it meets the description
of trading assets and liabilities set out in accounting policy 3a.

In designating financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, the Group has determined that it
has met the criteria for this designation set out in accounting policy 3a.

In classifying financial assets as held-to-maturity, the Group has determined that it has both the positive
intention and ability to hold the assets until their maturity date as required by accounting policy 3a.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for most deductible temporary differences and for tax losses carried forward
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which they can be utilized.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognized, based on the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.
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Segment reporting

5. Segment information is presented in the consolidated financial statements to reflect the Group's management and
internal reporting structure for the year 2007 and is devided into two segments, investment and insurance. The
investment segment consists of FL Group's operations excluding TM and its subsidiaries, which represent the

insurance operations of the Group.

Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

Segment results include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a

reasonable basis.

Investment

2007 activities Insurance Eliminations Consolidated
Net investment (loss) income ................... ( 72,885) (905 0 (. 73,790)
Operating income:

Insurance premium .........cccceeveveeeeeennns 0 2,769 0 2,769
Operating expenses:

Insurance claims ........ccccocevereeienencnnen. 0 (2,598) 0 ( 2,598)

Other operating eXpenses ...........ccoeeveee ( 5,227) ( 712) 0 ( 5939

Depreciation and amortisation ............... ( 85) ( 129) 0 ( 214)
Segment result before income tax ............. ( 78,197) ( 1,575 0 ( 79,772)
TNCOME tAX .vovevieeieiieieie et 8,510 4,024 0 12,534
Profit for the year .............cccooeiinncn. ( 69,687) 2,449 0 ( 67,238)
Segment aSSets ......coceecvereerierereeieneneniene 377,221 70,431 ( 25,332) 422,320
Segment liabilities .........c.cceceverereneenenne. 221,648 44,828 266,476

Investment  Discontinued

2006 activities operations Eliminations Consolidated
Net investment (loss) income ................... 43,191 ( 226) 0 42,965
Operating income .................occoeiienenn. 0 93,363 0 93,363
Operating expenses:

Operating eXpenses ..........ceceeevereereereennees ( 2,772) ( 88,860) 0 ( 91,632)

Depreciation and amortisation ............... ( 24) (2,744 0 ( 2,768)
Segment result before income tax ............. 40,395 1,533 0 41,928
Income tax .......cccooeiiiiiiiinciicicee 2,633 ( 2) 0 2,631
Profit for the year ........ccoceveeveenineienene. 43,028 1,531 0 44,559
Segment aSSets ......cceereereenienieniieneenieenne 262,226 904 ( 259) 262,871
Segment liabilities .........cccceveverereeieeenne. 119,562 633 0 120,195
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Disposal of Kynnisferoir ehf.

6.  Kynnisferdir ehf., a subsidiary operating in the tourism industry, was presented as of 31 December 2006 as a
disposal group held for sale, was sold in January 2007. Comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements contain amounts from the financial statements of the aforementioned company. Total assets the
company at year-end 2006 amounted to ISK 904 million and total liabilities amounted to ISK 634 million.
The gain on the sale, ISK 486 million, is included as gain on shares in the line Net income from securities and
derivatives in the income statement.

Business combination

7. During the year the Company in stages acquired 99.9% of outstanding shares in Tryggingamidstodin hf. (TM
hf.), an insurance company. The acquistion date was determined 1 October 2007. Until 1 October, 2007 TM
hf. was accounted for at fair value but the fair value change was reversed on acquisition date through equity.
Comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements do not contain amounts from the financial
statements of TM hf.

The acquisition, accounted for according to the purchase method, had the following effect on the Group's
balance sheet:

Pre-acquisition Provisional = Recognised

carrying fair value values on

amounts adjustments  acquisition

Cash and cash equivalents ............ccccevevereniniienienenceeeeeseeee 5,073 5,073
Equity INVESTMENTS .....cc.evueeiiiiinieniiniieieiee et 28,274 28,274
Bonds and debt inVEStMENTS .........coovvvivviiiiiiiiciee e 2,494 2,494
Loans and receivables, including insurance receivables 16,412 16,412
REINSUIANCE @SSELS ..vvievvieierieireeeereeeetee et e ceree et ereeeereeeereeeereeeeanees 13,899 13,899
Deferred tax @SSEL ......coveeierieriieiierieeie et 565 565
OPETAtING ASSELS ...veevvevierieiiitietieiesiesteeeeeteestesesseeseesaesaessessesseessessensas 544 549 1,093
TNtANZIDIC ASSELS ..eeveeiiieiieieie ettt 986 2,428 3,414
Trade and other payables .........cccceeereriiieienereseeee e (  6,653) ( 6,653 )
Insurance liabilities ( 30,567) ( 30,567)
Borrowings .......cccoeeeeviienieenieens (  8438) ( 8,438)
Income tax liability ( 4230) ( 99) ( 4,329)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities ...........ccccceveeeeveeeireeccieeereeenen. 18,359 2,878 21,237
MINOTILY INEETEST .uvevvenieniiieiteeiieieriesie ettt et ( 309)
Goodwill 0N ACUISIEION ....eeuvieniieiieiieieeiieie ettt 28,446
Total purchase consideration 49,374
Consideration satisfied by shares issued at fair value ....................... ( 33,897)
Consideration satisfied in cash 15,477
Net cash aCqUITE ....c..ooverieriiiiieniereeteee e ( 5,073)
Cash outflow on acqUiSItioN ............c.eveveveveveereceeeeeeeeeeeee e 10,404

Included in the consideration satisfied by cash are acquisition related expenses, i.e. advisers fees and other fees
amounting to ISK 290 million. Part of the consideration was satisfied with 1,390 million shares at the average
price of ISK 24.4 per share in accordance with the market price at each time.
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7. contd.:

The goodwill recognised on the acquisition is attributable mainly to the work force and the synergies expected
to be achieved from integrating the company into the Group’s existing activities. If the acquisition had
occurred on 1 January 2007, management estimates that consolidated revenues from insurance operation
would have been ISK 10,543 million and consolidated loss for the year would have been ISK 65,420 million.

TM hf.'s operations since 1 October 2007 are part of the consolidated income statement and consolidated cash
flow statement of FL GROUP hf. Profit resulting from TM hf. since acquisition date amounts to ISK 2,449

million.

The purchase price allocation has been determined provisionally. Accordingly, the allocation of goodwill to
cash-generating units could not be completed before year-end.

Investment income

8.  Net (expense) income from investment securities and derivatives is specified as follows:

2007 2006

Net (loss) gain on financial assets designated at
fair value through profit and 10SS .........ccceveiiriinieee e ( 48,207) 25,589
Net loss on financial assets held for trading ..........cccceeeveviniiecenineeeeee ( 15475 ( 1,633)
Net (expense) income from investment securities and derivatives .......................... ( 63,682) 23,956

Dividend income included in net investment income amounts to ISK 4,297 million (2006: ISK 806 million).

Interest income and expense

9. Interest income and expense are specified as follows:

Interest income on:

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash ..........ccoceveririrciecenec e 2,584 854
L0ans and reCEIVADIES .......c..cocviiiiuiiiiiieceie ettt ettt et ete e eraeeereeenes 2,398 0
TORAL ..ottt 4,982 854

Interest expense on:

BOITOWINES ...vivietieiietieteetietietest et ettt et e te st e eteetaessesesseeseessessessesseeseessessensasesseasnas 17,520 4,947
Trade and other payables 46 1
TOLAL ...ttt ettt et et e st reent e s ensenteeneenean 17,566 4,948
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Net insurance income

10. Insurance premium is specified as follows: 2007 2006
Premitums WITEEEI ......oooiiiiiiiiieie ettt eeate e e e eeaee e e e eaae e e e eenaaeeeeenes 3,583 0
REINSUIE'S SNATE .....cvvevviiiiieiieiieieet ettt ettt ettt e teesa et esaesbeeteessensenseeseeeeas ( 1,744) 0
Change in the gross provision for unearned premiums ...........cceeveevevierieneieerenennn 1,688 0
Change in the provision for unearned premiums, reinsure's share .............c.ccecenee.e. ( 758) 0
Total INSUTANCE PIETIUII .......veeeieieieiecieieieteeete ettt ettt snees 2,769 0

Operating expenses

11. Insurance claims are specified as follows:

CLAIMS PALA ettt b e ettt e bbb eneens 4,099 0
Claims paid, reinsure's share ( 1,553) 0
Change in the provision for claims 707 0
Change in the provision for claims, reinsures' Share ...........cccocevecvvenccncncnecnnenn. ( 655) 0
Total INSULANCE ClAIMS ....veevieiiiiiieiieieeie ettt ettt eeee e seaeeseesseeereesesessneesnanes 2,598 0

12.  Other operating expenses are specified as follows:
Salaries, salary-related expenses and other personnel expenses, see note 13 .......... 2,543 1,652
Depreciation and amortisation 113 23
Other operating eXpenses ...........ccecveeverueeeenne 3,497 1,096
Total OPErating EXPEISES ....cuveverrerriereerieieriesieeeeestesessesseeseessessesessesseessessessessessesses 6,153 2,771
Salaries and salary-related expenses

13. Salaries and salary-related expenses are specified as follows:
Salaries and DONUS PAYMENLS .......eueeieriireieieieierieeieeteie ettt seeeesaeeeeas 1,459 1,071
Equity-settled shared-based payment transactions .............cceeceeeeeeeieruereneeeereennns 567 435
Salary-related EXPEISES .......coirueeeeierierieeieieieste sttt este e ste et e st eate e seeseeeseeeenaeste e 484 126
Total salaries and salary-related €Xpenses ..........coceecveviererererienieneneneeeerenenae e 2,510 1,632
Other PErSONNEL EXPEISES ....c.veververrierieiieierieiteeteeteiessesseeseestesessessesseessessensessesseenes 33 20
Salaries, salary-related expenses and other personnel expenses, total ..................... 2,543 1,652
Average number of employees during the Year .........c..coccevenevveineieincnecnennenens 78 20
Auditors' fees

14. Remuneration to the Group's Auditors are specified as follows:
Audit of Financial Statements ..........c.ccceeieieieiierienieei ettt eeeeenennas 34 33
Review of Interim Financial Statements ............cccevieriiieeierienieneee e 6 8
OLhET SETVICES ..evviuviiieeieiiesieieeteettettetesteeteeteestesessesteeseessessesesseeseessessessassesseassensensas 38 32
Total AUAILOTS'S TEE ..ottt e 78 73
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14. contd.:
The above mentioned figures include fees to the auditors of all companies within the Group during the year.

Fees to other auditors than the auditors of the Parent Company amounted to ISK 44 million during the year
2007 (2006: ISK 17 million).

Income tax

15. Income tax recognised in the income statement is specified as follows:

2007 2006
CUITEINE TAX ..eentieiieetieeiieetie e te et e et et eeite et e eateeseeeateeaaeeabeenteenseeabeenseenbeenseenseenseenseensaans 6 782
Origination and reversal of temporary differences ............ccocceveveriiievieneneseenee ( 12,540) ( 3,413)
Total income tax in iNCOME STACMENLE ......c.coerveurrrerrirreirieeeenieeecreneeteenreeee e ( 12,534) ( 2,631)
16. Reconciliation of effective tax rate:
2007 2006
(Loss) profit before iNCOME taxX ........coveevuereeerinieenienieeneneeeeeneenene ( 79,772) 41,928
Income tax using the Company's domestic tax rate ...... 18.0% ( 14,359) 18.0% 7,547
Tax eXempPt TEVENUE ......eevveeruierieeiieieeieeieeieeieeieeneeen 0.2% ( 132) ( 0.9%) ( 390)
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions .................... ( 4.5%) 3,621 ( 0.1%) ( 33)
Tax INCENLIVES ..ooviveiieiiicieiirieieeeeeeeeecee e 5.0% ( 3,997) (1 22.6%) ( 9,485)
Non-deductible eXpenses .......cc.ceccevevereerieneneneneennes ( 3.2%) 2,534 0.0% 2
Oher IteMS .....ccvevveuiriiieieiicieeccee e ( 0.9%) ( 201) ( 0.9%) ( 272)
Effective tax 1ate .........ccoeviiinciininiciiiccce 15.7% ( 12,534) ( 6.3%) ( 2,631)
17. Income tax recognised directly in equity is specified as follows:
2007 2006
Income tax on cost Of iSSUING SNATES ......cc.ccveviieiiiieieiee e 92 34
(Loss) earnings per share
18. (Loss) profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company:
CONtINUING OPETALIONS ....eouveueieietienieiesieseeeeeetietesteeteeseeneesesseseeeseeneeeessesseeseensensenees ( 67,247) 17,351
Discontinued OPEIatiONS .........cc.erueruiririerieierteeieeeeiesteeee sttt et este et eseeneenseseeseeens 0 27,209
TOLAL .ttt bttt ( 67,247) 44,560
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18. contd.:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in million shares

2007 2006
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January ...........ccccooevieiioieiiniieeeee e 7,763 5,802
Effect of bought and sold own Shares ............coceveriiiiiiieienieeeee e ( 64) ( 133)
Effect of the increase of share capital in January 2006 ...........ccccceevecievieneneneenne. 0 284
Effect of the increase of share capital in July 2006 ...........cccecveveriiiecieieeeeeeee 0 752
Effect of the increase of share capital in April 2007 .......ccccoeoveieieririiieieeeeene 2 0
Effect of the increase of share capital in September 2007 ...........cceeveeereriieeeennnne 266 0
Effect of the increase of share capital in October 2007 ..........cccevereririeierierenenne 68 0
Effect of the increase of share capital in December 2007 .........cccoevveerienieneneennnne. 181 0
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December ..........cc.cccceeeeneennnne. 8,216 6,705
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
in million shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) ........ccccoceevueveneninencienenennens 8,216 6,705
Effect 0f Share OPtions .........ccoceeieieiiiieceeee e e 228 49
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) at 31 December ................. 8,444 6,754
(Loss) earnings per share:
Basic (loss) earnings per share (ISK) .....ccccoviiiiieiienieeeeeeeeee e ( 8.18) 6.65
Diluted (loss) earnings per share (ISK) ......ccceviiiiiriieeeceeeee e ( 7.96) 6.60
(Loss) earnings per share from continuing operations:
Basic (loss) earnings per share (ISK) ......cccooiriiiiiininieeee e ( 8.18) 2.59
Diluted (loss) earnings per share (ISK) .......ccccooiviiininiiienieceee e ( 7.96) 2.57
19. Financial assets and liabilities are classified as follows:
Design. at
fair value Financial
through liabilites at
Held for profit or Heldto Loans and amortised
31.12.2007 trading loss maturity receivables cost Total
Financial assets:
Cash and cash
equivalents ........c..occeue. 21,125 21,125
Equity investments ............ 3,148 215,850 218,998
Bonds and debt
INvestments ..........cceeee. 12,271 3,750 16,021
Derivatives ........cccceeveenenne. 6,604 6,604
Restricted cash .................. 53,060 53,060
Loans and receivables ...... 49,848 49,848
Total financial assets ........ 22,023 215,850 3,750 124,033 0 365,656
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19. contd.:

31.12.2007

Financial liabilities:

Derivatives .......c.cccceeeeneee.
Short positions ...................
Trade and other payables ..
Borrowings ........cccceeevuenene

Total financial liabilities ....

31.12.2006

Financial assets:
Cash and cash
equivalents .............coc.....
Equity investments ............
Bonds and debt
investments ....................
Derivatives .......ccccevenneee.
Restricted cash ..................
Loans and receivables ......

Total financial assets ........

Financial liabilities:

Derivatives ........cccceuvenneee.
Trade and other payables ..
Borrowings ........cccceceveenen.
Total financial liabilities ....

Cash and cash equivalents

20. Cash and cash equivalents are specified as follows:

Short-term deposits with credit institutions

Design. at

fair value Financial

through liabilites at

Held for profit or Heldto Loans and amortised

trading loss maturity receivables cost Total

13,488 13,488
3,350 3,350
14,469 14,469
204,979 204,979
16,838 0 0 0 219,448 236,286
47,022 47,022
20,859 160,178 181,037
124 124
4,309 4,309
9,572 9,572
19,478 19,478
42,130 160,178 0 76,072 0 261,542
7,021 7,021
5,908 5,908
104,955 104,955
7,021 0 0 0 110,863 117,884
2007 2006
BanKk DalancCes .........oooooiuiiiiiiiiii et 15,947 6,786
............................................................. 5,178 27,057
Mutual-fund CEertifiCates .........eevuiiriierieiieiieit ettt ettt eeeens 0 13,179
.............................................................................. 21,125 47,022

Total cash and cash equivalents
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Investment securities

21. Equity investments are specified as follows: 2007 2006
Fair value Fair value
including including
related related

Ownership derivatives Ownership  derivatives
Listed equity investments:

Listed on the Icelandic Stock Exchange:

Glitnir banki hf. .....ocooooiiiiii e 31.97% 104,430 30.36% 100,892
Other COMPANIES .....cocververeireieieieieee e 15,309 50,410
Total listed on the Iceland Stock Exchange ................. 119,739 151,302
Listed on foreign stock exchanges:

Inspired Gaming Group PLC ..........ccecveieiinircee 18.97% 4,054

FINNAIT OF] woviiiieiiiiieiesieeeeee e 12.69% 12,091 22.42% 23,126
Royal Unibrew A/S .....oooiriieieireeeeeeeeeee 25.57% 9,927 24.38% 14,013
Aktiv Kapital ASA ..o 13.27% 6,400 13.27% 6,671
NOrdicom A/S ...oovieiieeeeeeeeee e 21.71% 6,859

Comerzbank AG ........ccooeeeieiiieiecieceeeee e 2.90% 45,931

AMR COrporation ..........ccceeeeeerierereneneerienieseseeeenns 6.00% 27,626
Bang & Olufsen A/S .....coovoiieiiiiiieeeeseeeee e 11.45% 11,834
Other companies ...........cccoceeeeirineineneineneeeeneene (  7,944) 9,848
Total listed on foreign stock exchanges ...................... 77,318 93,118
Total listed equity inVesStments ...........ccceceevevrerresreennne 197,057 244,420

Unlisted securities:

Eikarhald ehf ........ccocooiiniiiiicccc 71.70%

byrping hi. ..o 49.33%

Refresco Holding B.V. ..o, 49.00% 49.00%

Geysir Green Energy ehf. ..........cccocoiiiiiininnininine 43.14%

Landic Property hf. .......cccooeiiieiiinieeiee 43.08%

Northern Travel Holding ehf. ...........ccooooiieiiieiee. 34.78% 34.78%

Highland Group Holding Limited ...........ccccccccveennennne. 13.89% 13.89%

Mutual-fund certificates .........c.covevrererirerererenerenns

Other COMPANIES ......ccvevvereiieieiieieie e

Total unlisted equity investments ...........cccceeeveerennncne 90,019 14,819

Total equity INVEStMENLS ...o..eeeeeieierieneieieieieeeeeeeeeene 287,076 259,239
Thereof equity derivatives, see note 24 ...........cccceeune ( 71,428) (  78202)
Thereof Short poSItiONS ...........cceeveeveenenieerenieeenenee 3,350 0
Fair value of equity investments at year-end ................ 218,998 181,037
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22. Bonds and debt investments are specified as follows:

Listed bonds and debt investments:

Listed on the Icelandic Stock Exchange:

Held fOr trading ......coveouiriiieieee et
Held t0 MALULILY ..eoveeiiiieiieeieee ettt s eneens
Total listed on the Iceland Stock EXChange ..........cccoooveievieneiieieieieieceeeeee

Thereof bonds deriVAtiVES ........c..ccieivieiuiiciieeieecie ettt ettt ettt eaeeas
Fair value of bond investments at year end ...........ccccoeeverereriienenienenieienenenene

Held to maturity bonds and debt investments are specified as follows:

Issued by the GOVEINMENL .......c.eeuieierieieeieieieie ettt
Issued by financial INSITULIONS .........cceeieieiiiriiei e
Issued by MUNICIPALILIES ....ecveeeieieiiiiiiieieiee et
ISSUCA DY COTPOTALES ....ovvieiiieiienietieieeieee ettt sttt
Total listed on the Iceland Stock EXChange ..........cccoocveievieniiiieieieieieceeeeeeee

Associates

2007 2006
16,098 8,729
3,750 0
19,848 8,729
3,827) ( 8,605)
16,021 124
74 124
3,617 0
2 0

57 0
3,750 124

23. As presented in note 4a(iii), investments in associates are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and
presented within equity investments in the balance sheet. At year end 2007, based on both direct and indirect

ownership, the following investments are defined as associates:

Glitnir banki hf., ICEIANG ......c...ooviiiiiiiiececee e
Eikarhald ehf., ICEIaNnd ...........ccooovuiiiiiiiciee et e e
Northern Travel Holding hf., Iceland ..........cccoceeiiiiiieniniiiiiieeeec e
Refresco Holding B.V., Holland ............ccooeiiiiiiiiiiiienieeeeeeeese e
Unity Investment ehf., Iceland ..........c.ccocoviriiiininininiieeece e
Pyrping hf., ICEIANA .......covoovieiiiieiiiiceeeeeeee ettt ens
Landic Property hf., Iceland ..........cccooeeieieiieiiiiieieieieeee et
Fasteignafélag Islands hf., TCEIANA ............ov.ovvoveeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo
Islensk endurtrygging hf., ICeland .............co.oouoveeoeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeee oo
Geysir Green Energy ehf., Iceland ..........ccccooiiieiiiieiieniieeeee e
VC Holdings Limited, United Kingdom ............cccoociiieiiiiiinieeeec e
Wyndeham Press Group Limited, United Kingdom ...........ccccovoirieiiiininiiieeeeee

Ownership

31.97%
71.70%
34.78%
49.00%
37.50%
49.33%
39.23%
32.32%
38.32%
43.14%
41.54%
49.00%

In December 2007 the Company acquired shares in Landic Property hf. and other real estate companies and
funds. As part of the investment the Company acquired 22.7% share in Eikarhald ehf. so the ownership after
the acquisition increases to 71.7%. This investment was not consolidated since control was not obtained at

year-end 2007.
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Derivatives

24. Net assets in derivatives are specified as follows:

2007 2006
Equity derivatives - receivable, $€€ N0te 21 .....cooveievierieriieieieieeee e 71,428 78,202
Equity derivatives - payable .........cccooieieieiiieeeceeieee e ( 78307) ( 77,005)
Net position of equity deriVAtIVES .......cceecierierieieieieriereee ettt ( 62879 1,197
Net position of other derivatiVes ...........coeererieireneireneeec e ( 5) ( 3,909)
Net position Of dETTVALIVES .....c..ccveirieieirierieireeereeer ettt ( 6,884 ( 2,712)
Derivatives - assets in the balance sheet ............cccoecveviieiiiiiiiiiiceceee e 6,604 4,309
Derivatives - liabilities in the balance Sheet ...........ccccooeviriniiieneniniieeeee ( 13,488) ( 7,021)
Net position 0f dErIVALIVES .....cc.eeieriiriiiirieierieste et ( 6,884 ( 2,712)

Restricted cash

25. Bank deposits amounting to ISK 53,060 million (2006: ISK 9,572 million) are restricted to use for the Group
at year-end. Deposits are cash held by financial institutions as collaterals for derivative transactions and
borrowings and are specified as follows:

2007
Bank deposits as collateral for deriVatives ..........coeoveereririnieniecnieieseseee e 24,995
Bank deposits as collateral for BOITOWINGS .......c.coveveuirieiiiriinieirerieecreee ettt 28,065
RESIICtEd CASI TOTAL ..ottt ettt ettt e e e e et e et eeabe et e eaaeeanas 53,060
Loans and receivables, including insurance receivables
26. Loans and receivables, including insurance receivables: 2007 2006
Investment related 1oan portfolio .........coceveeieiieriniiiinieeeeeee e 19,375 14,745
CollateraliSed 10ANS ........cveeeiviiiiieicieeeeee et et eetre e ereeeaeeea 7,879 0
INSUraNCe TECEIVADIES ......eccuviiiiiiieiieciee ettt ettt r e ereeeeareeevee e 5,015 0
Investment related trade reCeivabIes ..........ccecveieriiriiiieieieieceeec e 3,678 2,359
Other TECEIVADIES .....c.viiuviiiieie ettt ettt ettt ettt e eaeeereeenee s 6,401 2,374
Total loans and receivables, including insurance receivables ............ccocceereneennnee. 42,348 19,478

Allowance account for impairment at year-end 2007 amounts ISK 363 million and is deducted from insurance
receivables and collateralised loans in the Balance Sheet.

27. Repayments of loans and receivables, including insurance receivables:

Repayments 10 2007 ..c..ccooererieirinieiiineeeienecteeseeeee ettt 6,966
Repayments i 2008 ......c..cooerieirinieiiiieiieceeenteeee ettt 19,687 0
Repayments i 2009 ......c..coviiiininieiiiiieinecteenreeeee ettt 14,195 12,512
Repayments 1 2010 ......ccooiviiieininieiiicineceeeeree ettt 1,365 0
Repayments I 2011 ...oo.oiiiiiiiiiiiiciicceeeeee e 1,065 0
Repayments 0 2012 ......ociiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e eanas 825 0
SUDSEQUENT PAYIMENLS .....eevvivieeieiienieiesteeeteteiesteeteeteestesaesseeseessessesessesseessessessensenss 5,211 0
Total loans and receivables, including insurance receivables ............cccoovevevevenenese. 42,348 19,478
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Operating assets

28. Operating assets are specified as follows: Other
operating
Gross carrying amount Buildings assets Total
Additions during the Year ..........ccceveviereerenieneieeieee e 0 449 449
Balance at 31.12.20006 .........cccecivirieinenieiieneieeneeeeeeeeeesreenes 0 449 449
Exchange rate difference ............ccooceveveneiienieneniiceeescceceeen 0 1) ( 1)
Additions through business combinations ..........c..ceceeceevenereneenenne. 977 116 1,093
Additions during the Year ..........ccceceveveererieineneireeeeese e 211 555 766
Sales and disposals during the year ...........ccoeeveieievenenieieieeene. ( 22) ( 10) ( 32)
Balance 31.12.2007 ......ovvvierveereieieeinienieseseiesee s 1,166 1,109 2,275
Depreciation and impairment losses
DEPIECIAION ..vvvivieeieiienieeti ettt ettt et te et e st e saeeteeseesae s esesaeeseenseneas 0 24 24
Balance 31.12.2000 .......ccccevueiruinieieiinieieeseeesieeeeiesee e 0 24 24
DEPIECIALION ..vovviiieeieiieieeii ettt ettt e et eee e e b e sesaeeseenseneas 15 74 89
Sales and disposals during the year ...........cccoecveeeievenenieieieee, 0 5) ( 5)
Balance 31.12.2007 ..ot 15 93 108
Carrying amounts
Lo1.2000 oottt 0 0 0
31122000 ..ottt 0 425 425
BL112.2007 oottt 1,151 1,016 2,167
Depreciation TatiOS ........ceeerueeererierieerienieresterieee sttt ebe e e 2-4% 4-33%
Intangible assets
29. The Group's intangible assets are specified as follows:
Other
Trade Customer  intangible
Goodwill name relationship assets Total
Additions through business
combINAtION .......cccvvvviiveniieiiiiieeeeeines 28,446 2,784 575 54 31,859
Additions during the year ..........c.ccocceue. 0 0 0 54 54
Exchange rate difference ............cccc...... 42 4 2 0 48
Amortised during the year ..................... 0 0 ( 24) 0 ( 24)
Balance at 31 December 2007 ................ 28,488 2,788 553 108 31,937
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Equity

30. Share capital

The share capital was increased in September 2007 by ISK 974 million which was sold at ISK 23,656 million
in relation to the purchase of 46.1% stake in Tryggingamidst6din hf. The share capital was further increased
in October by ISK 326 million and was sold at ISK 7,922 million in relation to further purchase of shares in
Tryggingamidstodin hf.

The share capital was increased in two stages in December 2007. First by ISK 680 million which was sold for
ISK 10,000 million in a share offering, thereof ISK 7,500 million due 4 January 2008 and then by ISK 3,659
million sold for ISK 53,791 million in relation to the investment in Landic Properties hf. and other real estate
companies and funds.

The Company's share capital, according to its Articles of Association amounts to ISK 13,584 million. The
holders of ordinary shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote
per share at meetings of the Company. Share capital was increased during the year 2007 by a nominal value of
ISK 5,639 million, from ISK 7,945 million to ISK 13,584 million. The Company bought own shares at a
nominal value of ISK 22 million during the year for ISK 622 million. The Company sold own shares with a
nominal value of ISK 114 million for ISK 2,594 million. Share capital according to the balance sheet
amounted to ISK 13,494 million at the end of the year, share capital is specified as follows:

Amounts Ratio
Total issued shares at the end of the Year ..........cccveveiveniinininincceceee 13,494 99.3%
Shares owned by the Company and its subsidiaries ...........ccecerveevevierenereeieieeenne. 90 0.7%
Share capital according to the Articles of ASSOCIAtION ........cccvvevveeeruenveerenieenennenns 13,584 100.0%

Share capital amounting to ISK 112 million was owned by associates.

The Board of Directors has the right to increase the share capital until 25 September 2012 by up to ISK 1,320
million with sale of new shares. Thereof are up to ISK 500 million subject to the pre-emptive purchase
provisions of the Articles of Association. The Board of Directors decides the rules of sale each time, i.e. price,
payments, subscription period etc. Additionally the Board of Directors can increase the share capital up to
ISK 17 million for the purpose of financing the purchase of TM hf. The Board of Directors has the right to
purchase up to 10% of the nominal value of the shares of the Company until 22 August 2008. The shares'
purchase price may be up to 20% above the average sales price of shares on the Icelandic Stock Exchange.

Share premium

Share premium represents excess of payment above nominal value (ISK 1 per share) that shareholders have
paid for shares sold by the Company. According to Icelandic Companies Act, 25% of the nominal value of
share capital must be held in reserve which can not be paid out as dividend to shareholders.

Share option reserve

The reserve includes the accrued part of the fair value of share options. This reserve is reversed if share
options are forfeited and is transferred to share premium if share options are exercised.

Translation reserve

Foreign exchange differences arising on translation of financial statements of subsidiaries are recognised
directly in a separate component of equity. When a foreign operation is disposed of, in part or in full, the
relevant amount in the translation reserve is transferred to profit or loss.
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Trade and other payables

31. Trade and other payables are specified as follows:

2007 2006
Trade PAYADIES ....coveuiiuiiiiiiiriiieeeteee ettt 2,634 2,410
Insurance Hability .........cccccooverieiininiiiiiceceeeee e 4,224 0
Other PAYAbIES ........ooveiiiiiiiiiecc s 7,611 3,498
Total trade and other payables .............cccocveirinerieininincceccreeeeeeae 14,469 5,908
Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

32. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets are specified as follows:
2007
Insurance liabilities (total):
UNEAIMEA PIEIMIUIN ..evteutitietieiieieeteeteeetettestesteeteettestesesseeseeseessesesseessessessesesseessessensessesseessassensensessens 6,147
ClAIMS PIOVISIONS ..uviuveuieiirtenieiieteniest ettt ettt et ettt et et e ettt e st bt st et ebesbesteseebe st estebesbe st ebe st entenesbenseneebennas 23,479
Insurance LHabilities, tOTAl ...........cc.coiiiiiiiieie ettt ettt ettt eeete e e e veeveeveeateeaveenneenreens 29,626
Reinsurance assets:
Reinsures' share of insurance liabilities:
UNEArned PrEIMIUI ......cc.eoveuiiiirieiirieieiietentet ettt ettt sttt ettt be s st a et ebe st ebe e bt st ese s eneenenen 2,635
ClAIMS PTOVISIONS .....iuveiieiiienieiieteietet sttt ettt sttt sttt st e be et be s a e ebe b s st eae s seenesaen 11,017
Reinsurance receivable and retention MONEY ...........ccceviruerueuirienieirienieieiinieiee et eseeeeesesseeene e 285
Reinsurance assets, tOtal ...........cocciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 13,937
Net liability due to insurance contracts:
PIEIMIUIN TESEIVE ...ouviiviiciiiitiecieietee et et et e et et e st e e teesteeeteesteeeteeetaesasessseseseessesssesssesssesssesseesaseaseesseens 3,512
ClAIMS PTOVISIONS ..uvinveuiiirteteiietenieitete ettt ettt ettt sttt be st ebe st et e st besaeseebe bt ebeste st ebesbenseneesennen 12,462
Reinsurance receivable and retention MONEY .........cceeirieierierierieieieieste sttt eeeie et nee e seeeaes ( 285)
Insurance 1iability (Net), tOtAl .........cceririiiririiiece et 15,689
33. Changes in insurance claims liabilities and reinsurance assets in 2007:
2007
Claims provision Total Reinsurance Net
Reported Claims ........ccocveviieiieiieieieieeicee et 13,946 ( 4,299) 9,647
Incurred but unreported Claims ........cccooceveevierereninieeeeeee 6,775  ( 4,512) 2,263
TOAL oot 20,721  ( 8,811) 11,910
Translation difference of balance ............ccoceeeeveviiciceiineee ( 11) 8 ( 3)
Claims provision total ..........ccccereririereneniieeeere e 20,710 ( 8,803 ) 11,907
Claims during the Year .........ccccecvevvereniriiieene e ( 12,739) 3971  ( 8,768)
Incurred claims during the year ........cc.ccccovvevevieiieneninieieence 15,444 ( 5,719) 9,725
Fair value changes of receivables from previous year ................... 273 ( 453) ( 180)
Translation and exchange rate differences .............cccoeceeeneccnnnnee ( 209) ( 12) ( 221)
TOAL oottt 2,769  ( 2,213) 556
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33. contd.: 2007
Claims provision Total  Reinsurance Net
Reported Claims ..........cccooiciiiciiiiiicc e 15,210 ( 5,388) 9,822
Incurred but unreported claims ..........ccceevecerincinincnineneeees 8,269 ( 5,628) 2,641
TOLAL et 23479 ( 11,016) 12,463

Premium liabilities

Premium liability from previous Year .........c.cceceevererereercenieneennens 5,385  ( 2,279) 3,106
Translation difference ..........cccoccoevvevnineiiincinincnenccnee ( 152) 34 ( 118)
Increase of the Year .......ccoocvvieierininiiieec e 914 ( 390) 524
TOLAL ..ttt 6,147 ( 2,635) 3,512
Borrowings

34. Borrowings are specified as follows:

2007 2006

Carrying Carrying

Currency amount amount
Bank LOAn .......ccoviiiiiiiiiciie e ISK 86,200 39,987
Bank 10N .......ocuviiiiiiiiieceee e EUR 96,415 41,762
Bank 10N .......c.ooooiiiiiieeee e DKK 931 1,231
Bank 10N .......ccvviiiiiiiiecee e NOK 3,878 1,048
Bank 10N .......c.ooiiiiiieeeee e USD 7,771 20,927
Bank 10N .......ccoiiiviiiieiccee e CHF 3,837 0
Bank 10an .......ccooovviiiiiiiceee e JPY 2,006 0
Bank 10N ........coiiiviiiicieciececee et CAD 650 0
Subordinated 10an ...........cooueeeeiiieiiieieeeeeeeee e ISK 3,291 0
BOITOWINES ....cvceceeeeeeteeeeeeeteeceeece ettt et s s s ettt eseanssan s s s ananne 204,979 104,955

Weighted AVETAZE INLETESL ......ovcvevevereieieiecresesieeeeeieses sttt 9.23% 8.27%

Group's assets amounting to ISK 224,666 million (2006: ISK 163,301) are mortgaged to secure derivative
contracts and debt with the remaining balance of ISK 124,137 million at the end of the year 2007 (2006: ISK
79,969).

35. Repayment of borrowings are specified as follows:

Repayments in 2007 .......covoviiviiieieieneeeeeeeeese sttt e 43,838
Repayments in 2008 ...........ooeriieriiierieninereee e 55,609 0
Repayments in 2009 ........cccooiriiiriiiienieeeeeeeeee et e 89,753 50,144
Repayments in 2010 ......c.ocviiiieiiieieieieeicee ettt a e sb e ens 44,697 0
Repayments in 2011 ....ccveiiiieiiciieieieseeie ettt sttt enaennas 0 0
Repayments in 2012 .....ccooveiieiiieieieiesie ettt see e 11,629 10,973
SUDSEQUENE TEPAYIMNECIIES ....cuvievieeierieietieiieietestesteeeeeseesessesseeseessessessesseaseessessessensenns 3,291 0
BOTITOWIIIES ....eentiteitietieeie sttt ettt ettt et et e sae et e entene e bessesneeneenseneas 204,979 104,955
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Income tax liability

36. Income tax liability is specified as follows:

2007 2006
CUITENE TAX .eetteetie ittt te et e et e st e et e et e eateesteeateeseesseeeseeentesneesneesnsesseesnsesneeeneanns 6 782
Deferred INCOME tAX ...oveueruirieieiirieieieiteet sttt ettt ettt 558 895
Income tax lHability 31.12. ..ociciiieieiecieceeeeteeee et 564 1,677
Deferred income tax
37. The deferred income tax liability is specified as follows:
Deferred income tax liability 1.1. ...ccoiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 895 4,694
Additions through business coOmbINAtion ..........c.cceceeeeriererenieierieresceeeie e 3,764 0
Exchange rate difference ..........cocoeoiviniiiiincniiinccincceece e ( 92) 0
Income tax expense recognised in income Statement ..........c.oeeveerverveerennenenennenn ( 12,534) ( 3,413)
Income tax recognised i EQUILY .....cc.ceveeieriirieriirieieiene ettt ( 92) ( 34)
Oher ChANEES ....eoueiieiiiieiteeteteer ettt s 0 ( 352)
Net deferred income tax (asset) liability 31.12. ...cccooceviiieiieniiniieeieieeeeceeene ( 8,059) 895
The deferred income tax is attributable to the following items:
EqQUIty INVESIMENLS ....c.veuiiiiiiiiitirieieiinieeetesteeeest ettt ( 1,393) 22
Loans and trade 1eCeivables ..........coccveiiiniieiniiieinecneee e ( 896) ( 266)
OPETALINEZ ASSELS ....veuventetiitieiteterte sttt etet et sttt et et et e st sbeese et e testeeaeeseensesesbesaeeas 1,918 1,310
Other balance ShEet TEIMS .....c..cceverveiririieiieiereeeeee et ( 807) ( 171)
( 1,178) 895
Tax losses carried fOrward ............coeeievieriiininieieiee e ( 6,881) 0
Net deferred income tax (asset) liability 31.12. ...cccooeeieieiieneeieieee e ( 8,059) 895
Net deferred
Assets Liabilities tax (asset) liability
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Equity investments ........ ( 1,393) 23 ( 1,393) 23
Loans and receivables,
including insurance
receivables ................ ( 896) ( 267) 0 ( 896) ( 267)
Investments in
companies ................. ( 4) 0 ( 4)
Operating assets ............ 1,918 1,310 1,918 1,310
Tax loss
carry-forwards ........... ( 6,881) ( 6,881) 0
Other items .................... ( 840) ( 167) 33 ( 807) ( 167)
( 8,617) ( 438) 558 1,333 ( 8,059) 895
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37. contd.: Additions
through Exchange

1 January Recognised business Recognised in rate 31 December

2007  inequity combination profitand loss difference 2007

Equity investments ........ 23 4217 ( 5,627) ( 6) ( 1,393)

Loans and receivables ... (  267) ( 630) 1 ( 896)

Operating assets ............ 1,311 378 329 ( 100) 1,918
Tax loss

carry-forwards ........... 0 ( 307) ( 6,574) (  6,881)

Other items ........ccoeu.e.... ( 172) ( 92) ( 524) ( 32) 13 ( 807)

895 ( 92) 3,764 ( 12,534) ( 92) (8,059

38. At 31 December 2007 deferred tax liability amounting to ISK 12,942 million (2006: ISK 9,485 million) is not
recognised for temporary differences of ISK 71,901 million (2006: ISK 52,694 million) related to an investment
in subsidiaries because the Company controls whether the liability will be incurred and it is satisfied that it will
not be incurred in the foreseeable future.

When the Group pays dividends to its shareholders, it is required to pay a portion of the dividends to tax

authorities on behalf of shareholders, i.e. withholding tax. The amount paid to tax authorities is charged to
equity as a part of the dividends.

Share-based payments

39. The terms and conditions of grants are as follows:

Number of

instruments Contractual
Grant date / employees entitled in thousands Vesting conditions life of option
Options granted 2005 ..........ccocovevveinenieienennennns 130,500  12/24/36 months service 3 years
Options granted 2006 .........cccoceevvevieneneneeeennenn 120,460  12/24/36 months service 3 years
Options granted 2007 .........ccoeerereeenenieenenienens 433,900  12/24/36 months service 3 years
Total .o 684,860

All options are to be settled by physical delivery of shares. Options vesting in 12 months can be excercised
three times during the contractual life, at the end of each 12 month period. Accordingly 24 month options can
be exercised two times and the 36 month options only once at the end of the 36 month period.

The number and weighted average excercise price of share options is as follows in thousands:

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price  of options
2007 2007 2006 2006
Outstanding at 1 January .........cccceeeeveeveenenennen. 14.3 250,960 13.6 217,650
Forfeited during the year ..........c.cocoveveveneenennene 257 ( 144,502) 13.6  ( 46,100)
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39. contd.: Weighted Weighted

average Number average Number

exercise price of options  exercise price  of options

2007 2007 2006 2006

Exercised during the year .........c.ccccevevvneeeennee. 122 ( 59,087) 13.6  ( 41,050)
Granted during the year .........cccooceeviecerenenenncne 18.0 440,900 20.4 120,460
Outstanding at 31 December ..........ccccvevvervennrnen. 14.6 488,271 16.9 252,966
Excercisable at 31 December ..........ccccoeevevennnnnn. 11.2 61,937 13.6 43,500

The options outstanding at 31 December 2007 have an exercise price in the range of 10.6 to 31.1 and a
weighted average contractual life of 1.7 years. The share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised
in 2007 was 24.2 to 33.0.

Total recognised expenses for the year arising from share-based payment transactions amounted to ISK 567
million (2006: ISK 435 million) including adjustments for forfeited options during the year.
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40. Financial risk management

Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks form its use of financial instruments:

- credit risk

- liquidity risk

- market risk

- underwriting risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital. Further
quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial statements.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Goup,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and responsabilities.

The frame for asset allocation is monitored by a sub Committee of the Board of Directors, the Investment
Committee. The Committee advises on the investement policy as well as on investment opportunities, exit
opportunities and evaluates major individual investments. The Committee is authorised to approve transactions
on behalf of the Group up to a predetermined level. Divergence from target asset allocations and the
composition of the portfolio is monitored on intraday bases by the Group’s employees.

The Group maintains positions in a variety of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments in accordance
with its investment strategy. The Group’s investment portfolio comprises quoted and non-quoted equity and debt
investments.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or
commitment that it has entered into with the Group. The Group’s management looks to minimize this risk factor
by only entering agreements with solid and well known institutions in addition to closely monitoring the credit
risk on an ongoing basis.

Transactions involving derivative financial instruments are usually with counterparties with whom the Group has
signed master netting agreements. Master netting agreements provide for the net settlement of contracts with the
same counterparty in the event of default. The impact of the master netting agreements is to reduce credit risk.

Regarding loans and trade receivables internal procedures are used to manage the default risk, settlement risk,
exposure risk and collateral risk. The subsidiary TM hf. is defined according to Icelandic law as a financial
institution and is regulated by the FSA and reports quarterly to FSA on defaulted customers, exposure
concentration and equity limits.
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40. contd.:

TM hf. holds collateral against loans to customers in the form of mortgage interests over vechicles, properties,
ships and machinery. Estimates of fair value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of
borrowing, and generally are not updated except when a loan is individually assessed as impaired.

The Group's policy is to provide only financial guarantees to wholly-owned subsidiaries. At year-end guarantees
were outstanding as disclosed in note 50.

41. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date was:

2007 2006
Cash and cash equivalents ...........ccccceevereereeeiennnnn 21,125 47,022
Held-to-maturity investments 3,750 0
Restricted cash .........coouvvennennee. 53,060 9,572
Loans and receivables 49,848 19,478
REINSUTANCE ASSELS .....eeueeeiieetieiieiestestt et eeti et et ettt e e tesbeete et esaeseeseeseeseensensesseeseeneensenes 13,937 0
Maximum exposure to credit Tisk at Year-end ...........coceevevvirieeerierereiieeneeeeeeeeeeseseseen 141,720 76,072
Liquidity risk

42. Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The risk
management of the Group mitigates the liquidity by assuring adequate liquidity through unforeseen changes in
funding sources or market disruption. The Group’s financial instruments include investments in unlisted equity
investments and derivative contracts traded over-the-counter, which are not traded in an organised public market
and which generally may be illiquid. As a result, the Group may not be able to liquidate quickly some of its
investments in these instruments at an amount close to its fair value in order to meet its liquidity requirements, or
to respond to specific events such as a deterioration in the credit-worthiness of any particular issuer.

To mitigate this risk the Group has a policy of minimum available cash at any given time and in addition to that,

the Group’s listed financial investments, which represent large part of the total assets, are considered to be
readily realisable.

The breakdown by contractual maturity of financial liabilities:

31 December 2007 0-12 1-5 Over No stated
months years 5 years maturity Total
Liabilities:
DEIIVALIVES ..veiiiiiiiieecciiiee e 13,488 0 0 0 13,488
Short POSIHIONS ...eevveveiieiieienieniieiteteee et 0 3,350 0 0 3,350
Trade and other payables .........cccccocevirencrnienicnenene. 14,469 0 0 0 14,469
BOITOWINGS ..o.veevieiieieieeiieieiieie ettt 55,609 146,079 3,291 0 204,979
Total financial Habilities ................ooocoroccrrrer oo 83,566 149429 3291 0 236286
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42. contd.:

31 December 2006 0-12 1-5 Over No stated

months years 5 years maturity Total
Liabilities:
DEIIVALIVES ..vveieeveieeieeeciee e eree e 7,021 0 0 0 7,021
Trade and other payables .........cccccocevirereerienieniennenne. 5,908 0 0 0 5,908
BOITOWINGS ..ot 43,838 50,144 10,973 0 104955
Total financial liabilities ............ccoveeevvvererireeeennen. 56,767 50,144 10,973 0 117,884

Commitments amounting to ISK 18,979 million at year-end are payable on demand as disclosed in note 51.

Market risk

43. Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimising the return.

The Group’s strategy on the management of market risk is driven by the Group’s investment objectives. The
Group’s market risk is managed on a daily basis in accordance with policies and procedures in place. The
Group’s overall market positions are monitored on a monthly basis, or in some cases more frequently, by the
Board of Directors.

Currency risk

44. The Group entities may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies
other than their functional currencies. Consequently, the Group is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its
currency relative to foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse affect on the value of that
portion of the Group’s assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than the Icelandic kronas (ISK).

The Group’s total net currency balance is monitored on daily basis and traded as any other calculated financial
position.

The breakdown of financial assets and financial liabilities by currency:

2007 Assets  Liabilities Net
DKK e e s e 8,701 1,200 7,501
EUR s 104,773 99,358 5,415
GBP et 8,500 1,289 7,211
TPY e 317 2,031 ( 1,714)
INOK ettt ettt 8,982 3,661 5,321
SEK ettt ettt ettt ae s 3,099 1,514 1,585
USD ettt bbbttt et b e eaeen 4,736 13,086 ( 8,350)
OhET CUITENCIES ...ovvivieieeieiieieeit et eiiet ettt ettt ettt a et e b sseeteessessesseeseenas 817 4,594 ( 3,777)
TOLAL ... 139,925 126,733 13,192
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44. contd.:

Assets  Liabilities Net

2,290 1,427 863

18,498 41,878 ( 23,380)

( 1,695 67 ( 1,762)

1,159 1,051 108

622 0 622

3,615 25,043 ( 21,428)

160 0 160

24,649 69,466 ( 44.817)

A 10% weakening of the Icelandic Krona against the above currencies at 31 December 2007 would have
increased equity and decreased post-tax loss by ISK 1,081 million (2006: ISK 3,721 million). This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Interest rate risk

45. The majority of the Group’s financial assets are non-interest-bearing. Interest-bearing financial assets reprice in
the short-term, no longer than twelve months. As a result, the Group is subject to limited exposure to fair value
interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates when it comes to assets. The
Group is however exposed to interest risk from interest bearing liabilities and that risk is mitigated by active risk
management. Any excess cash and cash equivalents of the Group are invested in short-term commercial paper or
reverse repurchase agreements with the term to maturity no longer than one month.

A change of 1% in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased post-tax loss by ISK 800 million.
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

2007 2006
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
PrOfit oot e ( 800) 800 ( 612) 612

Price risk

46. Equity price risk is the risk that value of the instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in equity prices,
whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all instruments
traded in the market.

As the majority of the Group's equity investments are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognised in
the income statement, all changes in market conditions will directly affect investment income.

Market fluctuations are monitored by the Group's management on intraday basis which enables the Group to
react quickly to any changes in the market.
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The investment portfolio of TM hf. is also monitored by the Icelandic Financial Supervisory Authority (FSA),
but the portfolio of the respective subsidiaries is structured to ensure that capitalisation is adequate and financial
strength is maintained at all times.

Insurance risk

47. The customer base of the insurance operation is well diversified and the company is not reliant on any individual
client or customer. The insurance companies in the Group are TM hf. and its subsidiaries.

In order to limit the underwriting risk of the insurance operation, part of the risk is transferred to reinsurers. The
amount of risk that the companies carry for their own account is determined with respect to the financial strength
of each of the insurance company and the nature of the risk.

Capital management

48. The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. Policies have been implied regarding equity ratio and loan to
value ratios both in respect of on and off balance sheet financing. The impact of the level of capital on
shareholders' return is also recognised and the Group recognises the need to maintain a balance between the
higher returns that might be possible with greater gearing and the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position.

To maintain its balance and desirable loan to value ratios the Group increased the share capital during the year.

The subsidiary TM hf. is subject to externally imposed capital requirements by the FSA. TM hf. has complied
with all imposed capital requirements throughout the year.

There have been no material changes in the Group’s management of capital during the year.
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Financial instruments and fair values

49. The fair values of financial assets and liabilities at year-end is not significantly different than the carrying amounts
shown in the balance sheet.

Financial Guarantees
50. The Group has provided guarantees to several companies.

The Group issued guarantee' to Sterling’s creditors through the associate Northern Travel Holding ehf., amounting
to ISK 2,852 million, when it sold Sterling at year-end 2006. The Group receives arms length fee for providing the
guarantee.

The Group issued guarantee to Icelandair Group hf., when it sold the company in 2006. The Group has issued
guarantee on aircraft financing agreement amounting to ISK 2,700 million. The Group has also undertaken
obligation of non-recourse of several associated companies of Icelandair Group hf. The associated companies own
aircrafts. It is expected that the obligations will be transferred to Icelandair Group hf. during the year 2008. The
buyer of Icelandair Group hf. has committed it self to hold FL GROUP hf. harmless of any claims or cost deriving
from the aforementioned guarantee.

The Group has issued a guarantee to creditor of one of its associates Fasteignafélag Islands hf. amounting to ISK
750 million.

Commitments

51. The Company has committed itself to further investments in several investment projects. Total payments, if all the
projects will develop, could be up to ISK 18,979 million.

The Group has entered into operating lease agreements for offices and vehicles for the next 8 years. Non-
cancellable operating lease rental payments, are not included in the balance sheet.

Related parties

Identity of related parties

52. The Group has a related party relationship with entities with significant influence over the Company, its associates
as disclosed in note 23 and with its Board Directors, CEO and managing directors, referred to as the management.
Entities with significant influence over the Company during the year were Baugur Group hf. and related parties,
Oddaflug B.V.
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Transactions with management

Salaries and benefits of management paid for their work for Group companies, share option agreements and shares
in the Company are specified as follows:

Net gain Share held
Salaries and ~ on exercised at year-end
bonuses options  Share options 2007
Board of Directors:
Jon Asgeir Johannesson, Chairman of the Board ....... 5.8
Porsteinn M. JONSSON .......c.coceuiviviiiiiiniiiniciiiecie 5.5
GuNnar SIGUrGSSON ....c.evveueeuieeiieieienerieneeeeeeeeeeeee e 0.2
Hannes Smarason, former CEO ..........c..cccoeevvenneennen. 139.5 1,475.1
Kristin EAWald .......cccoeceveviniiiiniincncneeeceee 0.2
Palmi Haraldsson ..........cccoccceveiniiincnincincinciees 0.3 635.1
Pordur Mar JOhannesson .........cocceveeveevenveeeereenuenns 0.2
Smari S. Sigurdsson, alternative board member ......... 3.8
Skarphédinn Berg Steinarsson, former Chairman ...... 59
Jon Kristjansson, former board member ..................... 34
Kristinn Bjornsson, former board member 0.4
Magnus Armann, former board member ... 3.8
Paul Davidson, former board member ........................ 6.1
Managing directors:
Jon Sigurdsson, CEO .......coocoveieiieieiniceeeecee 32.5 201.5 0.01
Five Managing Directors of FL Group hf. .................. 183.7 216.8 85.0 11.0

Included in the above mentioned list of shares held by management and directors are shares held by companies
controlled by them and derivative agreements entered into regarding shares in the Company.

Other transactions with related parties

During the year 2007 the Group made transactions with related parties. These transactions were priced on an arm's
length basis.

The Group expensed rental payments to a company owned indirectly by its former CEO for service rendered during
the year. Receivables from the same company at year-end are included in Loans and trade receivables.

The Group owns 31.97% share in Glitnir banki hf. During the year the Group and the bank made transactions
which are included in the following amounts from associates. The Group paid the bank interest for borrowings,
received interest income from its cash equivalents placed at the bank. The Group also purchased derivatives from
the bank and paid fees for services, such as investment banking and sale of new shares. The Group has granted
loans to two of its associates, Northern Travel Holding ehf. and Unity Investments ehf.

Included in Loans and trade receivables are loans to Materia Invest ehf., which is held by Porsteinn M. Jonsson
board member and Magnus Armann former board member, for services rendered. The loan was paid in January
2008.
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Outstanding balances at year-end, income and expenses during the year are specified for each group of related

parties as follows:

Manage-

Entities with ment /

significant board

Income statement: influence Associates members
Net (expense) income from investments 0 ( 1,838) 0
Interest iINCOME ....c..ecveuveeeeerenenieieecene 0 958 0
INEETESt EXPEIISE ..evireiriieieieiieie ettt ettt e ettt ste et eseeseeaeeeeneens 0 ( 518) 0
OPETating EXPEINSES ....veuvviurrerirrerinrerereeteeereseereaeerestseeresseneeeseessesesnenes ( 85) 0 0

Balance sheet:

Cash and cash equivalents ............cccoevereiieriiinininenecceccene 0 5,908 0
Loans and trade receivables ........c.ccvevveviieieniieienieieeeeeeeee e 94 18,547 73
DETIVALIVES ..ot 0 ( 1,170) 0
BOITOWINGS ...ttt 0 ( 25,296) 0

In December 2007 the Company acquired shares in Landic Property hf. and other real estate companies and funds
from Baugur Group hf. for ISK 53,791 million. The purchase price was paid with new shares in the Company with
the nominal value of ISK 3,659 million, sold at the rate of 14.7 per share.

Group entities
The Company holds twelve subsidiaries which all are included in the consolidated financial statements. The direct
subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements are specified as follows:

Share
31.12.2007
Investments:

FL GLB Holding B.V., The Netherlands ............cccccccocioiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccciceecccns 100%

FL Group Danmark ApS, DEnmArk ...........cccccreuiririerineiiniiinieiiieieinee ettt eseee e saenens 100%

FL Group Midtown Miami Ltd., USA ... 100%

FL Group UK limited, ENGland ..........cccccoiiiriiniiiiiiccnctre ettt 100%

FL Group Property LLC, USA .......cccooiiiccece s 99%

FL Group USA Ltd., USA ..ottt ettt sttt sttt 100%

FL Holding B.V., The Netherlands ..............ccccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicccecccas 100%

FL Holding ehf., ICEIANA ......ccooueiiiiiiriiiiiitiiicetc ettt 100%

FL Trading AS, NOTWAY .......ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccseeec s 100%

Kjarrholmi ehf., TCEIANM .......coouiiiiiiiiiieee ettt 100%

TONVIS €hf., ICCIANA .....oeiiieiiiieieieeee ettt ettt b e et e b e s st e beetsesseeseensessaensenseas 100%

Insurance:

TryggingamiOstOOIN Df. .....c.cooeuiiiiiiiiiiiicie ettt 100%
Fjarkviar hf., Iceland .........cccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s 66%
Liftryggingamidstodin hf., Iceland ............cooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 51%
Nemi FOrsikring ASA, NOIWAY .....cc.eiiiriiiiiiirinenieteet ettt sttt 100%
Trygging hf., ICEIANG ......cc.coiviiiiiiiiiic ettt 100%
TM £€ €hf., ICEIANA ......c.veiiiviiiiieieceeeeeeee ettt et e et eb e e etaeeteesaseeneeeaneens 100%

The subsidiaries own six subsidiaries that are included in the consolidated financial statements. These subsidiaries
have immaterial effects on the accounts.
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The Company acquired 100% of the shares in BG Fasteignir ehf., Dial Square Holdings ehf. and Baugur Group
B.V., all holding companies with investments in real estate funds. These investments are recognised among equity

investments in the balance sheet and are not consolidated since control was not obtained before year-end 2007.
Consolidation for these companies would not have increased the Group's total assets or liabilities.

Subsequent events
53. Large part of the Group's assets are in listed companies. Subsequent to 31 December 2007 the OMXI 15 index,
which is a stock market index consisting of the 15 most valuable share listed in Iceland has decreased by 21.0% on

12 February 2008 and the shares in Glitnir banki hf. have decreased by 20.3% at the same time.

Since year-end 2007 until 12 February 2008 the exchange rate of the Icelandic Krona has decreased by 8.6%.

Financial Ratios

54. The Group's principal financial ratios:

2007 2006
EQUILY TATIO 1.ttt ettt ettt sttt 36.9% 54.3%
Internal value of Shares ............ccoceciviiiiiiiiiii 11.55 18.38
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Unaudited financial information

Quarterly Statements

Summary of the Group’s results by quarters:

Year 2007 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total
Net income (expense) from securities

and derivatives ..........ccoceeveeeerveriennens 12,472 7,658 23,651) ( 60,161) 63,682 )
Interest iNCOME .........covveeveeeeeeereeereeenen. 1,498 473 973 2,038 4,982
Interest eXPense .......ccceeveevverveeverueeeennens ( 3,017) «( 3,263) 4,972) ( 6,314) 17,566 )
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) ........... 4,627 4,208 3,121) ( 3,238) 2,476
Net investment income (expense) ........ 15,580 9,076 30,771) ( 67,675) 73,790 )
Insurance premium .........cceceevevereeennnne. 0 0 0 2,769 2,769
Insurance claims .........ccocceevveeeeviieiennenne 0 0 0 2,598) 2,598)
Other operating eXpenses ............c..c...... ( 884) ( 1,022) 1,193) ( 3,054) 6,153)
Profit (loss) before income tax ............. 14,696 8,054 31,964 ) ( 70,558 ) 79,772)
INCOME taX .oovvevieeieieciieieeeee e 388 ( 12) 4,817 7,341 12,534
Profit (loss) for the period ................... 15,084 8,042 27,147) ( 63,217) 67,238)
Year 2006
Net income (expense) from securities

and derivatives 10,537 ( 2,137) 4,409 11,147 23,956
Interest income .......... 172 143 211 328 854
Interest eXpense .........ccoeeeeeeerenenieneennns ( 326) ( 1,310) 1,655) ( 1,657) 4,948 )
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) ........... 75 1,958 1,754) ( 2,650 ) 2,371)
Net investment income (expense) ........ 10,458 ( 1,346 ) 1,211 7,168 17,491
Other operating expenses ............... ( 485) ( 523) 695) ( 1,068) 2,771)
Profit (loss) before income tax 9,973 ( 1,869) 516 6,100 14,720
INCOME taX .oovvivieeieiieiieie e ( 1,684) 534 1,101 2,680 2,631
Profit (loss) from continuing

OPerations ............ccoeveveveenrerrriennens 8,280 ( 1,335) 1,617 8,780 17,351
(Loss) profit from discontinued

operations net of income tax .............. ( 2,450) 1,217 3,640 24,801 27,208
Profit (loss) for the period .................... 5839 ( 118) 5,257 33,581 44,559
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